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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARVIND SMART TEXTILE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind Smart Textile Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to ds “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principfes generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw your attention to note 38 of the financials which explains the uncertainties and management’s
assessment of the financial impact on the financial statement of the Company due to the lockdown and
other restrictions imposed by the Government of India and other conditions related to the COVID-19
pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment in the subsequent period is highly dependent
upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

(e
/l/l/ T

Head Office : 902, Raheja Centre, Free Press Journal Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021, _
Telephone : +91 22 2282 4811, 2204 0861 » Email : sorabsengineer@yahoo.com, ssemum@sseco.in

Bengaluru Branch ; F-1, Vaastu Jayaiaxmi, B Street, Opp. Fortis Hospital, 1st Main Road.-Sheshadripuram, Bengaluru-560020.
Telephone : +91 9925879234« Email : sseblr@sseco.in



'SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

"The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Beard’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, but does nof include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other-information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

ar error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can drise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
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evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the-operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
cenditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to contifue
as a going concern.

« FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the fi nancial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reascnably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our wark; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with retevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and ‘explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
e Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Reportarein
agreement with the relevant books of account.
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d)

e)

f)

g}

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in cur opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would affect its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There have been no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417W

ol dlyr M-

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner '
Membership No.100892
UDIN:20100892AAAANX6147

Ahmedabad
June 25, 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Smart Textile Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financiat controls over financial reporting of ARVIND SMART
TEXTILE LIMITED (“"the Company”} as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial staterments of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s. policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detecticn
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit, We conducted cur audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
*Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financiat controls over financial reparting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 11041 7W

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No,100892

Ahmedabad
June 25, 2020
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ANNEXURE B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Smart Textile Limited of even date)

i.  Inrespect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets
were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided
to us, we report that, the title deeds, of immovable properties other than -self-
constructed immovable property (buildings) which are freehold, are held in the name of
the Company.

ii. As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

iii. According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Censequently, requirements
of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iv, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any
investment covered under section 185 or section 186 of the Act. Consequently, requirements
of ctause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed.
by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Court or any other Tribunal.

vi. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s
product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable. ' ‘

vik. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is-generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it.
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(b} According to the information and explanations given Lo us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period
of more than gix months from the date they became pavyable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no disputed amounts are
payabte as at March 31, 2020.

viil, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

iX. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. However, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by
the Company for the purpose for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment
pending application.

X. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

Xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid/provided managerial remuneration. Consequently, requirements of clause (xi)
of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

Xili. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares during the year under review. Consequently, requirements of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

XV. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him.

Xvi. According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 11041 7W

el dhere A

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
June 25, 2020



Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2020

Amount in Rs.

U R PR As at Asat ..
Particulars. | Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS.
L. Non-purrent asscts
{a) Property, plant ‘and equipment 5 59,50,08,020 21,02,59;480
{b) Capital work-in-progress 35,53,72,954 20,63,75,897
(). Righl-of-use assel 33,63,72,985 -
{d) Financial assels
(i) Other financial assets & (d) 2,17,17,727 2,14,91,352
{r) Deferred Lax assets {net) 24 11,44,18,237 -
{f) Other non-currenl assets 7 99,79,424 7.24,33,673
Total non-current assets 1,43,28,69 347 51,05,60,402
II.Current assets )
{a} Inventories 8 22,10,72,504 1,3G,08,370
{b) Financiat assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 (a) 7,37,65,888 4,54,2G,717
(it} Cash and cash equivalents G (b) 2,67,38,156 1,50,638
(iil) Bank balance other Whan (i) above 0 (c) 64,414,000 55,55,000
{iv}) Olhers financial assels 6 (d} 81,874 -
{c)y Current tax assets (net) 9 3,21,879 1,83,720
{d) Other current assels 7 31,07,17,509 8,26,99,616
Total current assets 63,91,41,810 14,70,18,061
Total Assets 2,07,20,11,157 65,75,78,463
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity .
Equity share capital 19 11,00,000 11,00,000
- Other equity 11 15,14,10,365 (2,64,47,968)
Total equity 15,25,10,365 {2,53,47,968)
LIABILITIES
I. Non-current blabilities
{a) Financial hdbifities
(i) Borrowings 12 (a) 47,21,92,943 19,68,76,069
(li} Lease Liabilities 34,47,25,175 -
{b} Leng-term provisions - 13 87,663,420 46,55.179
Total nen-current liabilities 82,56,81,538 20,15,31,248
+ IL.Currgnt liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 12 (a) 37,13,87,400 28,68,49,600
(ii) Lease Liabilities 2,73,30,947 -
(iii) Trade payables ) 12 (b)
a} Totad outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali
enterprises ) ) ) . -
b) Tuta! outf_-.l,ancfmg dues_; ofc_r.c:dltors other than micro 52,79,44,641 1%,12,37,499
enterprises and small enterprises !
(iv) Other financial liabilitice 12 (¢} 14,90,43,432 7,68,85,901
() Other current: liabilities 14 1,19,52,287 60,79,428
(¢} Short-term provisions 13 61,60,547 3,42 755.00
Total current liabilities 1.09,38,19,254 48,13,95,183
Total Equity and Liabilitics 2;07,20,11,157 65,75,78,463

Sec accempanying neles ferming part of the Financial Statements
T

As per qur repert of even-dale

For Sorab S, Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountanls

Firm Registration No. 110417wW L

Ol ey

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership Mo, 100892

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : June 25, 2020

For and on behalf of the board of directors I
Arvind Smart Textiles Limited

Director ~

inay Swaika

{DIN: 02082040) 53

Lirector -~ Sushecet Kaul
(N D8208011)
Place : Ahmiedabad
Date : June 25, 2020
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Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
_S'tate_ment of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Amount In Ks.

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,.2019 -
I. Income
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 15 79,73,99,385 5,51,48,628
Sale of Sérvices 15 79,21,468 86,65,536
- Operatiig Tncome . 15 2,61,28,564 50,95,667
Revenue from cperations 83,14,49,417 6,89,09,831
Other income - 16 6,99,278 30,462
Total income (I} 83,21,48,695 6,89,40,293
II. Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 17 42,61,75.860 7%,90,859
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18 31,03,36,617 6,10,30,021
Changesiin inventories &f work-in-progress and finished goods 19 (13,28,47,050) €52,74,360)
Employee benefits expense 20 22,16,09,003 3,16,48,671
Finance costs 21 9,28,17,920 62,71,333
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 8,32,27,452 35,46,005
Other expenses 23 16,03,55,341 2,88,28,409
Total expenses (I1) 1,16,16,75,143 13,40,40,938
HI_. PI"Oﬁt/(LOSS) before EXCGPﬁOﬂal items and tax (I‘II) (3'2,95,26,448) (6,51,00,645)
IV: Exce’ptitjnal_items : 23A (3,66,00,000) .
V. Profit/ (Loss) béfore tax. (IEE-IV) (36,61,26,448) (6,51,00;645)
VI Tax'expense
Current tax’ 24 - -
Deferred Tax charge / (credil) . 24 (10,92,75,545) -
Total tax expense {10,92,75,545) -
VII. Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) (25,68,50,903) (6,51,00,645)
'-V:'III. Other comprehensive income
A. Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans {38,14,655} -
incorne tax effect 24 9,60,072 -
Net other comprehensive income/ (loss) not to be reclassified to (28,54,583
profit or loss in subsequent periods (A) o ) B
XI. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax N
(VII+VEIT) (25,97,05,486) (6,51,00,645)
¥: Earning per equity share
. Basic-Rs. : 31 (2,335.01) (3,993.57)
- Diluted - 'Rs. ’ 31 (2,335.01) (3,993.57)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statemenls

As per our report of even date

For Sorab $: Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm-Registration-No. 110417W A

cm{lcfﬂw

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Director -

\pay Swaika
(DIN:  92082040)

For and.on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Smart Textiles Limited

Ditector ~ Susheel Kaul
(DIN: 08208011}

Place : Ahmedabad

Place : Abmedabad
Date :June 25, 2020 Dale

: June 25, 2020



Arvind Smart Textiles Limitcd
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

Amount in /s.

Year anded
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

A Cash Flow from Operating activitics
‘Profit/{Loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depraciation /Amortization
Interest Income
Interest and Other Borrowing Cast
Operating Profit belore Working Capital Changes
Working Capital Changes:
Changes in Invantorias
Changes in trade payables
Changes in other liabilities
Changes in other financial liabilitics
Changes in provisions
Changes in trade receivables
Changes in cther assets

(36,61,26,448)  (6,51,00,645)
§,32,27,452 35,456,005
(4,38,014) (30,147)
9,28,17:920 62,71,333
(19,05,19,080)  (5,53,13,454}

(20,80,64,134)
41,67,07,142
58,72,85%
1,07,94,554
61,11,378

(2,83,45,171)

(22,77,41,328)

(1,30,08,370)
11,72,27,602
65,34,186
1,61,38,394
49,97,934

(4,54,20,717)

(8;40,82,510)

Changes in other financial assets (2,26,375}- {2,14,91,352)
Net Changes in Working Capital {2,48,91,075) (1,71,04,833)
Cash Generated from Operations {21,54,10,165) (7,24,18,287)
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) (1,138,159} (1,83,720)
Net Cash from / (used in) Operating Activities (21,55,48,324) (7,26,02,007)

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment /Intangible assets

(56,21,57,505)

(42,11,27,174)

Changes in Other Bank Balances {8,89,000) {55,55,000)

Changes.in Capital Advances 6,21,77,684 {7,15,01,270)

Interest Incame 3,56,140 30,147

Nel cash How from/ (used in) Investing Activities {50,05,12,681) (49,81,53,297)
€ Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Issue of share capital - 10,00,000

Changes in Securities Premium - 3,90,00,000

Changes in Share apphcation money
Changes in long term Borrowings
Changes in short.term borrowings
principal Payment of Lease tiability
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid

45,00,00,000
30,38,84,326
8,45,37,800

(5,81,47,032)

(3,61,08,704)

24,61,85,572
28,568,49,600

(37,10,379}

Net Cash {low from/ (used in) Financing Activilies . 74,41,66,890 56,93;25,093
Net Increase/(Dgcruase} incash & cash equivalents 2,81,0%,885 (14,30,211)
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year (13,67,729) 62,482
Cash & Cash cquivalent at the end of the year 2,67,38,156 (13,67,72%)

Figures in brackets indicate autflows.

Amount in Rs.

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Yeal_'.ended
March 31, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on Hand )

90,000

Balances with Banks 2,66,48,156 1,50,633
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Note 6 b) 2,67,38,150 1,50,638
Leys: Book Overdraft {Note 12 ¢) - 15,18,367
Cash and cash cquivalents 2,67,38,156 (13,67,729)




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited

Statemoent of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind As 7 on cash flow siatements undar Companics {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended)

Note

Non Cash Changes

Eu[ér?s_"u!__ abilities arising from . As at Net cash flows  EFfect of change in As at .
finanting activity No. April 1, 2019 Forcign Currency  Othicr Changes® March 31, 2020
Lol Rates "
Borrowings:
Lohg term borrowings 13 (a) 24,61,85,872 30,38,84,326 - - 55,00,70,198
Short term’ borsowings 12(a) 28,68,49,600 8,45,37,800 - - 37,13,87,400
Interest accrued on borrowings 12(¢) 7%,03,110 3,43,13,892 - - 4,18,17,002
_ Total- 54,05,38,582 42,27,36,018 - - 96,32,74,600
_Non'Cash Changes -
Note As at Effect of change:in : . As.at
" No. April 1, 2018 N.-Et ciash _fl.ows Foreign Curi‘(:gucy _QEI'IEIT_ChangES*_. 'Marr':h_ 31',-_201'9
: . ‘Rates . IR
. Borrowings:
Long term borrowings 12(a) - 24,61,85,872 - - 24,61,85,872
Shart term borrewings 12(a) - 28,68,49,600 B - 28,68,49,600
Interest accrued on borrowings 12{c) - - - 75,03,110 75,03,110
Total - 53,30,35,472 - 75,03,110  54,05,38,582
Notes:

1} The cash Row statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out i Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7}

statement of cash flaws,

As per.our report of even dale

For'Soral 5. Engincer & Go-

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 110417W

Oalle o &

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Fartner
Membership Nao. 100892

Place : Ahmedahad
Date : lune 25, 2620

For-and on hehalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Smart Textiles Limited

Director - Woay Swaika
(BIN: (Q2082040)

C}ﬁ&—@% {

Dirnctor - Susheal Kaul
(DIN:  08208011)
Piace @ Ahmoedabad
Date : June 25, 2020




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Statement _of Changes in Equity

A, Eq'uity ‘share capital

TBalance

Amount in Rs.
Note 10

As at April 1, 2018

Issue of Equity Share capital
As at March 31, 2019
Issue of Equity Share capitat
As at March. 31, 2020

11,00,000

11,006,000

11,00,000

. B. 'cher equity

Attributable to the equity holders

Amount in Rs.

Place :: Ahmedabad.
Date :June 25, 2020

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : June 25, 2020

" Share Reserves and Surplus -
Application -~ - o o LT
Money Pending - Securities: - Retained - Total equity: . .
" Allotinent premium - Earnings .- e i
Note 11 “Fote T4 Note 11

Balance as at April 1, 2018 (3,47,323) (3,47,323)

Profit/(Loss) for the year - - {6,51,00,645} (6,51,00,645)
_ Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
‘Total Comprehensive income for the year - - {6,54,47,968) (6,54,47,968)

Addition during the year - 3,90,00,000 - 3,90,00,000

Balance as at March 31, 2019 - 3,90,00,000 (6,54,47,968) {(2,64,47,968)

Balance as at April 1, 2019 - 3,90,00,000 (6,54,47,968) (2,64,47,968)

Effect of change in accounting policy as per Ind As 116 - - (1,66,18,801) {1,66,18,801)
- Tax Impact of Ind As 116 - - 41,82,620 41,82,620

Profit/{Loss).for the year - - (25,68,50,903) (25,68,50,903)

Other comprehensive income for the year - - (28,54,583) (28,54,583)
- Totat Comprehensive income for the year - 3,90,00,000 (33,75,89,635) (29,85,89,635)
*Addition daring the year 45,00,00,000 - - 45,00,00,000
" Balance as,:at March 31, 2020 45,00,00,000 3,90,00,000 (33,75,89,635) 15,14,10,365
As. perour report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For Sorab 5. Engineer & Co. Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
- Chartered Actountants 7

Firm Registration No, 110417W x;‘i*) e~ 7

L 1 (ﬁ A \ -
- _ ' - Directo- Vinay Swaika

CA, Chokshi Shreyas B. (DIN: 02082040)

Partrer )@D

Membership No. 100892 W

Difector - Ststiael Kaul
(DIN:  08208011)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

Corporate Information

Arvind Smart Textile Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated in India under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and has its registered office at Arvind Limited Premises,
Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380025 having CIN U17299G)2017PL.C100201. The Company is a
subsidiary of Arvind Limited. The Company has set up project of garment manufacturing at
Ranchi (Jharkhand) and Bavla {Gujarat). Unit at Ranchi has started manufacturing Woven
garments. At Bavla, the company is manufacturing denim and Knits garments.

The Company’s Financial Statements were approved by Board of Birectors in the meeting held

©on June 25, 2020.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

'_-2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for the certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, the provisions
- of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified (“the Act”).

Accounting policies were consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initiatly adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standards requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit.and Loss including
other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as
at March 31, 2020 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rute 3 of the Companies
- (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
schedule IIT) as applicable to financial statement,

12,2 Rounding of Amount

The Financials Statement are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) and all the values are rounded
to nearest rupee as per the requirement of Schedule I1I, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its

- Financial Statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is: -
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;



« Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period; or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A liability is current when:
» It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
» It is held primarily for the purpese of trading; ]
s Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferied tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle
QOperating cycle of the Company is thé time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is

not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances, Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.

3:3.Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Company elects whether te measure the non-controiling

interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets.

Business Combination under Common Control

A husiness.combination.involving_entities_or businesses. under_ comman.control.is a business. ... ...
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties bath before and after the business combination and the contrel is




not transitory. The transactions between entities under common control are specifically
coverad by Ind AS 103. Such transactions are accounted for using the pooling-of-interest
method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised at their carrying
amounts of the parent entity’s Financial Statements with the exception of certain income tax
and deferred tax assets. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any
new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting
policies, The components of equity of the acquired companies are added tc the same
components within the Company's equity. The difference, if any, between the amounts
recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or cther
assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to other equity and is
presented ‘separately from other capital reserves. The Company’'s shares issued in
consideration for the acquired companies are recognized from the moment the acquired
companies are included in these financial statements and the financial statements of the
commaonly controlled entities would be combined, retrospectively, as if the transaction had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest reporting period presented.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values jrrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

# Deferred tax assets or liabilities, the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements and related to leases are recognised and measured in accordance with
Ind AS 12 Income Tax, Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits and Ind AS 116 Leases

- respectively.

% Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the

acquiree or share - based payments arrangements of the Company entered inte to

replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

Assets (or disposal Companys) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with

Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discentinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining

" contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

A4

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-

measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit-or-loss-0r-QCl-as-appropriaie: - —




Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwilt is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
‘of the net assets -acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results-in an excess.of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated te each of the Company's cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the dispesed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement

-period-does-net-exceed-one-year-from-the-acquisition-dater v : e



3.4.Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements -are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

_ Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency

spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost ina foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items. measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value .is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair

- value gain or loss is recegnised in OCI or profit.or loss are also rccognlsed in OCI or profit or

3.5.

loss, respectively).
Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting peried.

Fair value is the price that would be received te sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability
or

« Irithe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

“The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. '

A fair value measurement of a non- fmancuai asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate econamic benefits by using the asset m ltS htghest ‘and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use-the asset in its highest and best use,



The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unchservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpuf that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observablea.

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservabie.

For assets and liabilities that are recegnised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. '

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
vatue measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale.

- External vé_luers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external vatuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case,

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation te contracts and
other relevant documents,

Management, in conjuriction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has detefmined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
lavel -of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
givery in the relevant notes

+ Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy



+ Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date
of transiticn
« Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.6.Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment. is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant-and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
“eriteria. are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial
period of time te get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. :

Capital work-in-progress coi’nprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dispesal or when no futdre
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
~ derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net dispesal proceeds
“and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
" the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,

When parts ‘of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depremated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful Jife of the principal assets whichever is less. Depreciation for
assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and-equipment
are reviewed at each.financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

.3.7.Leases

assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use. of an identified asset for

“Fhe-Company’s-lease-asset-classes-primarily-consist-of-teases-for-buildings: Fhe-Company-- -



a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3} the Company has the
right to direct the use of the assel. :

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and lTow value
leases. For these .short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the sharter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU} te which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assct have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
cperating leases. )

When' the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease

and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by~

reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.



For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date;

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application;

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application;

4 Applied the p'racticai expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
" transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

3.8.Borrowing cost
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange

differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. '
Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a preject, the amount capitalised represents
the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus furnids are available out of meney borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is
de_ducted from-the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the Funds used to finance a project
¢ - form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted
average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
3.9.Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Work-in-progress, Finished goods, Trims and Accessories and
Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value: However, Raw material
and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost.

for as follows:

"Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted T



« Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost.is determined on first in, first
out basis.

» Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity,
but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

» Trims and Accesseories: cost includes cost of purchase and. other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on
first in, first out basis.

» Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.

All other inventories of stores, consumables, project material at site are valued at cost. The
‘stock.of waste is valued at net realisable value. ' '
.
" Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

. in a}ssessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
. value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessrents of the time value
‘. - .of money and the risks specffic to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent

- market transactions are taken inte account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prlces for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
aliocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a periocd of five
years. For longer pericds, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applled to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss in those expense categorles consistent with the function of the lmpaured asset
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other




" comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other

comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no ionger'exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverahle amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since

- the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount

of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either

“individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the

carrying value may be impaired.

'3.11.Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured and traded goods and
related services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contrel of the
goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except
for the agency services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods.

Variable consideration
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the

amount of consideration to which it will be entitied in exchange for transferring the goods to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved., Some contracts for the sale of geoods provide
customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts give rise to
variable consideration. '

i. Discounts )
Discaunts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable

consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected value
method. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is

_primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contaired in the contract. :



b)

&)

d)

re)

f)

Contract balances

i.. Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to

the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the. customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

ii. Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is

unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (xiv) Financial instruments
.- initial recognition and subseguent measurement.

fii. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer, If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier}. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from services are recognised based on the services rendered in accordance with the
terms of contacts on the basis of work performed.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset, When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options} but does not consider the expected credit losses, Interest income is included
in otherincome in the statement of profit or loss.

Insurance claims

Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.



‘3.12.Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recagnised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

{ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
» Financial assets at amortised cost
« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

+ Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the
principal amourit outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Arnortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is includad in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and

- the gontractual terms” of ‘the -financial-asset give-rise on-specified -dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the

principal amount outstanding.



Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recoginizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and faoreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is- classified
as at FVTPL. ‘

In addition, the Campany may eiect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is altowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair

_ value with all changes recognised in Staterment of profit and loss.

Equity instruments: :

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair valué. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts freom OCT to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumuiative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the P&L

' (iii} Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or



(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the-Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Compariy also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis thal reflects the rights and obligations that the Company. has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After iritial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, -a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result.of external or intgrnal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business
model-occurs when the Campany either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immiediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or [osses) or interest. :

- {(v)Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure: '

« Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

+ Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and
Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance

on:

"« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing
componeht




« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

o Right Of Use Assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplifiad approach dees not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on. other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
aliowance based on 12-month ECL. '

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company

in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to

receive (i.e:, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
= cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

« All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument, However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

« Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the peried is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
_in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the .P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for varicus financial instruments is described below:

« Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and ROU
Assets: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The aliowance reduces the
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines

““financial instruments ‘on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the

objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.



The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
arigination.

b} Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables; or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lcans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below: :

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss -
Financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or less include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This categary also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
R as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Gains or
o g T losses on liahilities held for trading are recognisad in the profit or foss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCIL. These gains/ losses
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

= Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amecrtised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

" Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.




This category generally applies to borrowings.
{iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability} is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

L ¢) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

- Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The.Company uses derivative. financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

" Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
‘to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hediges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently resuits in the
recogniticn of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
« Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
Vo ~ = Cash flow hedges when hedging- the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
A either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probatle forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in -an
unrecognised firm commitment:

At the inception of a hedge relati'onship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge. accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
jtem’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are.
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
“throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.




Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described

below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change. in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the Hedged
item.and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as scen as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value

attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,

“the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable

to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

(ii)Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in QCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure- to foreign
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
.portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the

©ineffective portion relating to commeodity contracts is recognised in other income er

expenses.
Amounts recognised as QCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction

- affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is

d)

recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset ot non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is meat.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recoghised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.



3.13.Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash-equivalent in the balance sheet comprisé cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with @ maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.14.Taxes
Tax 'expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temperary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date. :

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

.. _' When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recegnition of gocdwill or an asset
" or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

« In r'espéct of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and. interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax cradits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax ¢credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises frem
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in.a transaction that is not a business




combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
‘taxable profit or loss;

« In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangeéments, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow al or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unreccgnised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has becorne
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the repoerting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correfation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried ferward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss, The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.

3.15.Empioyee Benefits

- a} Short Term Employee Benefits
N All'employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
' as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, employees’ state insurance fund
scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such




schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

{ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company'’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial vafuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gress cobligatien under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprisinig of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit llability
and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

C) Other long term employment benefits:

. The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company's defined benefit plans.
The present value of the ebligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using
the Proiected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the
obligation on the net basis. '

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such -as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.16.Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordihary shares outstanding
“during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

-~ The dilutive potential equiEy shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity

" shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors.



3.17.Provisions and Contingencies

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimb'ursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a

e séparate‘asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recegnised as
a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence ar non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to ‘settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recoghised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

+

3.18.Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reparting provided
to the chief operating decision makaer,

.3.19,Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the repaorting pericd. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that dre indicative of conditions that
arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are
-not accounted but disclosed.




4, Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

. The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and, income
and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Such judgements, estimates
and associated assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and varicus other
factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Management has considered the possible effects, if
any, ‘that may result from the pandémic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its

¢ ‘assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying

“assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periocds.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the
management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting pelicies and that have the
mast significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and / or key sources
of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner
i5 acting as a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary
obligation for pricing latitude and exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale
of-goads. The Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent
basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business
partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations., An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its fong-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapoclated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The meortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.




Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 29,
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
~ where possible, but where this. is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
' establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 33 for further disclosures.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, Estimated irrecoverable
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogéneous groups. and
assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance: for
doubtful debts-is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil).

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be Tecognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxablé profits together
with future tax planning strategies. '

“The Company has Rs. Nil {(March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil) of tax credits carried forward. The
‘Company also has Rs. 11,20,64,175/- (March 31, 2019: Rs, Nil) of unused losses available
for offsetting against future taxable income. The Company has taxable temporary difference
and tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the recegnition of these
credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has determined that it can
recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried forward and unused losses carried
forward.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 24,

Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realisable value is estimated to be
lower than the inventory carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into
account various factors, including prevailing sales prices of inventory item, the seasconality of
the item’s sales profile and losses associated with obsolete / slow-moving inventeory items.

Property, plant and equipment

Refer Note 3.6 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying
value of Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5,



Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use ¢alculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet commitied to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event,
the. Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash Flows.

" The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which
are not recognized on the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent
liabilities may arise from [itigation and other claims against the Company.

Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations
which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not
broba‘ble of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated
as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the
Financial Statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final cutcome of the
legal proceedings in.which the Company involved, it is not expected that such contingencies
will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability {Refer Note 25).

Lease Term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasenably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an opticn to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.
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Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

.Note 6 : Financial assets

6 {a) Tradce receivables - Current

Armount in Rs.

iPacticutars

As at
March 31, 2020.

Asat
March 31, 2019 -

Unsecured, considered good

7,37,65,888

4,54,20,717

Total Trade receivables

7,37,65,868

4,54,20,717

1. No trade receivables are due from directars or other officers of the Company either severally or jeintly with any
persen nor any trade receivables are due from firms or privale companics raspectively in which any director is a

director, a partner or a member,

2. Trade receivables are given as security for borrowings as disclosed vnder Note 12

Amount in Rs.

6 (b) Cash and cash equivalent

‘particulars:

Asat
March 31, 2020

As at

-March 31, 2019

Cash-an hand 90,000 -
Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit balance i cash credit accounts 2,66,48,156 1,50,638
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,67,38,156 1,50,638
.6 {c) Other bank balance Amount in Rs.
L “As.at Asat

Particutars -

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Deposils with original maturity of more than thrée months

but less than 12 months - 55,55,000

Hald as Margin Money*

Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 61,44,000 -
Total other bank balances 64,44,000 55,55,000
* {inder lien with bank as Security lfor Guarantee Facility
6 (d) Other financial assels Amount in Rs.
e s T : As at As at

‘Particulars *

March 31, 2020

Macch 31, 2019

(Unsecured, considered good unless othenwise stated}
Naon-current

2,17,17,727

Security deposits 2,14,51,352
) 2,17,17,727 2,14,91,352
Current
Accrued Interest 81,874 -
81,874 -
Totat other financial assets 2,17,99,601 2,14,91,352

Other current financial assets are given as.security Tor borrowings as disclosed under Note 12

16-{e} : Financial Assects by category

Amount in Rs.

‘Particutars,

EVOCT

Amortised Cost

March 31, 2020

‘Trade Receivables - - 7,37,65,888
Cash & Bank balance - - 3,31,82,156
Cther financial assets - - 2,17,99,601
Total Financial Assets - - 12,87,47,645
March 31, 20192

" Trade Receivables - - 4,54,20,717
Cash & Bank balance - - 57,05,638
Other financial assets - - 2,14,91,352
Total Financial Asscts - - 7,26,17,707

Far Financial instrumants risk management objectives and peolicies, refer Note 35

Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 32 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Notg 34



Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Other current / non-current assets

Amount in Rs.

As at

 Particulars March 31, 2020

Asat’ |
March-31;.2019

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current

Capital advan¢es 53,23,580 7,15,01,270
Prepaid expenses-non current 6,55,838 9,32,402
99,79,424. 7,24,33,673
Current
Advance to suppliers 1,35,58,338 60,148,463
-Advance to Employees 10,53,819 6,83,956
Export inceplive receivable 1,58,41,693 38,47,142
Prepaid expenses’ 26,38,311 9,358,313
" Income Receivable 15,96,90,139 3,96,65,694
Balance with -Government Authorities (Refer Note 1 befow) 11,17,91,697 3,15,16,048
Export Licence on Hand 61,494,112 -
31,07,17,509, 8,25;99,616
Total 32,06,96,933 15,51,33,289
1. Balance with Government Authorities mainly congist of input credit availed
2, Other current-assets are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Mote 12
MNote 8 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value}
Amount in Rs..
As at As at

Particular. , 2
_'::a::l_'tn: a s - .March 31, 2020

March-31, 2019

"Rai materials 5,00,83,874 33,28,600
- . Raw material in transit 40,64,839 -
Fuel ’ 2,56,884 1,24,074
Work.in progress 8,14,14,081 B
Stores & Spares 1,11,54,620 15,84,486
Finished Goods 7,31,68,206 10,71,210
Total 22,10,72,504 1,30,08,370

Neote @ Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realisable value for
Rs. 2,46,88,579/- {March, 2619 Rs, Nil). The changes in write downs arc recognised as an expense in Lhe Statement

of Profit and Loss, .
Inventories are hypothecated as security for borrewings as disclosed under Note 12.

Mote 9 : Current Tax Assets {Net)

Amount in Rs.

As ot

‘»E;::fticula'x:-s . :
e i March 31, 2020

As.at
March 31, 2019

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Tax Paid in Advance {Net of Provision} 3,21,879

1,83,720

Total 3,21,879

1,83,720




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 10 : Equity share capital

As-at March 31, 2020 - As at March 31, 2019 _
No. of shares  Amountin Rs. No. of shares -Amount in RS,

Parti

_Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each {March 31, 2019: 12,335,000 1,23,50,000 1G,00,060 1,00,00,G00
fs. 10 each)

Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each (March 31, 1,410,000 11,00,000 . 1,10,000 11,00,000
2019: Rs. 10 each)

Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10-each (March 31, 1,10,000 11,00,000 1,10,000 11,00,600
2019: Rs. 10 each)

Total . 1,10,000 11,00,000 ° 1,10,000 11,00,000

.10.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

As:at March 31, 2020 As.at-March.31, 2019
R T - Ee No. of shares - Amount in Rs. . No.of-shares-. ‘Amiountin Rs.
At the beginning of the period 1,10,000 11,00,000 10,000 1,00,000
Add: Issue of Share Capital - - 1,060,000 10,00,000
© _Qutstanding_at the end of the period 1,10,000 11,00,000 1,10,000 11,000,000

© "10.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each, Each shargholder-is
entilied to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amaunts, in proportion to their shareholding,

10.3. Shares Held by Holding Company

Toarkicurs. AssiWarcn 31,2020 AeatWarchsi, 7019
S e o Mo, of shares = _Amount.in Rs.. No. ofshares AmountinRs.
Arvind. Limited - (along with nominees) 1,10,000 11,00,000 1,10;0C0 11,500,000

10.4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

As at March 31;,.2020 - AS at' March 31,2019
% of - : % of .
shareholding - shareholding

Name of the Sharehalder. - p
LT T TATT e No. of shares

‘No of shares -

_ Holding Company - Arvind Limited 1,10,000 100% 1,10,000 100%

10.5 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 36



Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Other Equity

Amount in Rs.

Particulags. ;-

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Note 11,1 Reserves & Surplus

Share Application money
Balance as per last financial statements
Addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

‘Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statements
Add; Addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus’in statement of prolit and loss

45,00,00,000

#5.410,00,000 <
3,90,00,200 -
- 3,90,00,080
3,90,00,000 3,90,00,000

Balance as per last financial statements {6,54,47,968) {3,47,323)
_Effect of change inaccounting palicy as per Ind As 116 {1,66,18,801} . -
Tax Impact of Ind As 116 41,82,620 ) -
Add: Profity {(Loss) for the year {25,68,50,903) {6,51,00,645)
Add / (tess): GCl for the year {28,54,583) -
Balance at the end of the year (33,75,89,635) {6,54,47,968)
Total reserves & surplus 15,14,10,365 (2,64,47,968)
Total Other equity 15,14,10,365 (2,64,47,968}

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows !

Securitics premium

Sacurities premium is crealed due to premium on issue of shares., These reserve s utilised in accardance with the

provisions of the Companies, Act.

Note 12 : Financial liabilities

Amount in Rs.

12{a) Long-term Borrowings

Asat
March 31, 2020

Asat
Murch 31, 2019

Leng-term Borrowings (Refer Note 1{a) bélow)

Non-qurrent portion
Secured (at nmortised cost)
Term loan from Banks

Current maturitics {Refer Note 12¢)
Secured (at amortised cost)
Term loan from Banks

‘Total long-termi borrowings
Short-term Borrowings

Unsecured
Intercorporate Doposils

Fram Relatad Parties {Refer Note 30}

Total short-term borrowings

47,21,92,043 19,68,76,069
37,21,92,943 19,68,76,069
¥,78,77,255 4,93,00,863
7,78,77,255 4,93,00,803
55,00,70,198 24,G1,85,872
37,13,87,400 28,68,49,600
37,13,87,400 28,68,49,600

Total borrowings

92,14,57,598

53,30,35,472

Nature of security:
Term loan of Rs. 55,00,70,198/-
Term Loan from Banks are secured by:

i. Secured by first pari passu charge over the entire moveable fixed assels of the company and current assets of the
company.
.

ii. Additionally:secured by Corporate Guarantee given of Holding company; Arvind Limited.

Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

Particulars Amount Range of Terms of Repayment from Balance shect date
{Rs.) Interest (%)
From Banks
Tarm ican 55,00,70,198] 8.45% to Repayable in quarterly instaiments starting from December 2G19 to May 2026
§.85%

Rate of Interecst
i, Intercorporate Deposils carry interest rates at rate of 8.75% per annunt.



Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

12 {b} Trade payables )
Amount in Rs.
As.at As at
March 33, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current
Other Trade Payables (Refer Nete helow)
-Total cutstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises - -

-Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 52,'}9,44,641 11,12,37,499

Total 52,79,44,641
a Acceptance and Other trade payables are not-interest hearing and are normally setlled on 30-50 days terms

11,12,37,499

b- The Company has’not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under Lthe Micro, Smali and Medium
Enterprise Development (MSMED). Act, 2006 and nence distlosures as reguired under Section 22 of The Micre, Small and
.- Medivm Enterprise Development {MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:
: {a) Principal amount and the inlerest.due thereon remaining unpaid Lo any supphers as at the end ol accounting year;
(b) Interest paid during the year;
(¢} Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

{d} Interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment;
{e) Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and

{f} Further interest remaining due and payable even in the sutceeding years, until such date

when the inlerest dues alove are actually paid to the small enterprise,

have not been given. The Company is making efforts to get the confirmations from the suppliers as regard to their status

under the saigd Act.

"-12 (¢} Other financiaj liabilities

Amount in Rs.

Asat
March 31, 2020

. As at
Mareh 21, 7019

Non-current

Current
Current maturity of long term borrowings {Refer Note 12a}
interest accrued and due
Interest accrued but not due

7,78,77,255

4.18,17,002

4,93,00,803
75,03,110

Payable to employces 2,93,49,175 1,85,54,621

Book overdraft - 15,18,367

14,90,43,432 7,68,85,901

. Tatal ‘ 14,90,43,432 7,68,85,901
12(d) ; Financial Liabilities by category

Amount in Rs.

;'1 Partlcular EVTPL FVOCT Amaortised Cost

March 31, 2020

Borrowings

Cureent maturity of long term borrowings
Lease Liabilities

84,35,90,343
7,78,77,255
37,20,56,122

Trade payables - - 52,79,44,641
Payable to employios - - 2,93,49,175
Interast accrucd but not due - - 4,18,17,002
Total Financial liabilities - - 1,89,26,24,538
tarch'31, 2019 .

Borrowings - - 48,37,25,6069
Current maturity of long term borrowings - - 4,93,09,803

Lease Liabilities
.. Trade payables
. Payable to employoes

11,12,37,499
1,85,54,621

Interest accriied and due - - 75,03,11¢
" Book overdraft - - 15,18,367
""Total Financial liabilities - - 67,18,49,069

For Financial instruments risk management ohjeclives and palicies, refer Note 35

" Fair valua disclosure for financial assels and liabilities are in Note 33 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are inNote 34



Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes te the Financial Statements

Note 13: Provisions

Ampunt in Rs.

© Barticufars”

Asat
March 31, 2020

As at |
March 31,2019

Long-term
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Noke 29)
Provision for feave encashment 20,90,914 25,30.037
provision for Gratuity 66,72,506 21,25,142
87,63,420 46,55,179
Short-term
. ‘Provision for employee benefits {Refer Note 29)
proviston for leave encashment 21,06,110 2,31,207
Provision for Gratuity 40,54,437 1,11,548
’ 61,60,547 3,42,755
_Total 1,49,23,967 49,97,934
“ Note 14 : Other current liabililies
i Amount in Rs.
As at JAsat.

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Current
Statutory dues including providant fund and tax deducted at source 1,18,86,688 60,22,671
Employee Deposit - 19,489
Olher Liabilities 55,599 37,208
Tatal 1,19,52,287 60,79,428




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 15 : Revenue from operations

Amount in Rs.

"P_a:[r!:icu_la:l"s R

- Year Ended

March 31, 2020 . -

Year Ended. .
March 31, 2019

Sale of products 79,73,99,385 5,51,48,628
Sale of servicés ?9,21,468 86,65,526
Operating income ’

Export incentives 2,31,02,716 50,95,667

Fxchange difference (net) 21,91,451 -

Wwaste Sale 8,34,397 -

2,61,28,564 50,95,667

Total 83,14,49.417 6,89,09,831
1. Disaggreqgation of revenue Amount in Rs.
S TR T ‘Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2020,

March-31,.2019

"A. Revenue based on Geography

i, Domestic 55,54,06,815 1,05,93,718
ii. Export 27,60,42,602 5,83,15,113
83,14,49,417 6,89,09,831
B. Revenue based on Business Segment
Branded Apparels and Accessories 83,14,49,417 6,89,09,831
11. Reconciliation of Revenue from Operation with Contract Price Amountin Rs.
i o i i - Year Ended " Year Ended

‘Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31,.2019

Contract Price 83,16,62,645 6,89,09,831
Less: -
Schemes and Discounts - -
Excise duty on sale of goods - -
Sales Return 32,13,228 -
Bonus / incentive - -
Customner Loyally Program - -
Total Revenue from QOperations 83,14,49,417 6,89,09,831
Note 16 : Other income
Amount in Rs.
* Year Ended - " XearEnded
-March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Interest income 4,38,014 30,147
Scrap Sale 2,60,606 -
Other Miscelleneous Tncome 658 315
Total 6,99,278 30,462
Note 17 : Cost of Raw material and accessories consumed
Amount in Rs.
. Year Ended Year Ended

March:31,-2020-

‘March 31, 2019 _

Stock.at.the beginning of the year 33,28,6C0 -
Add : Purchases 47,38,531,134 1,13,19,45¢9
47,71,59,734 1,13,19,45%
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 5,09,83,874 33,28,600
Total B 42,61,75,860 79,90,859
Note 18 : Purchases of stock-in-trade
Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended

:_ﬁ?ai}_ticulai;s_ i

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Purchase of stock-in-trade

31,03,35,617

£,10,30,021

Total

31,03,36,617

6,10,30,021




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Nete 19 : Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finishaed goods

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

Year Ended
March 31, 2019

Stock at the end of the year

Work iy progress 8,14,44,081 -
Finished Goods 7,31,68,206 79,71,210
15,46,12,287 79,71,210
Stock at the beginning of the ycar
Work in progress - -
Finished Goods 79,71,210 -
Transferred from Capital Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods' 57,40,132 26,96,850
Work in progress 80,532,895 -
1,37,94,027 26,96,850
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories {13,28,47,050) {52,74,360)
No.te 20 : Employee benefits expense
. Amount in Rs.
~Year Ended -Year Ended

?'Iiiéi'ticyiars

“March 31, 2020

‘March.31; 2019

Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commissien, etc. (Refer Note 29) 19,67,04,307 2,25,47,682
Contributicn to provident and cther funds (Refer Note 29) 1,73,82,030 67,568,570
Welfare and training expenses 75,22,666 23,44,419
Total 22,16,09,003 3,16,48,671
Mote 21 : Finance costs
Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended

"Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Interest Expenses on

Loans 2,01,54,836 16,14,151
Lease Liabilities 2,74,30,217 -
Inter Corporate Deposits
~Related Party 4,52,31,475% 46,56,781
Cthers 1,392 401,
Total 9,28,17,920 62,71,333

Note 22 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Amount in Rs,

Year Ended

Year Ended

Particulafs’. - March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 .
Depreciation on Preperty, Plant & Equipment (Refer Nole 5) 4,67,02,660 35,46,005
Depreciation on Right-ol-use Assets 3,65,24,792 -

Total 8,32,27,452 35,46,005




Arvind Smart, Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 23 : Other expenses

Amount in Rs.

;_it;q[a_é-s

“Year Ended

March 31, 2020

. Year Ended: -
March31, 2019

Power -and fuel 1,92,29,050 29,26,660
Insurance B,94,029 98,626
Processing charges 1,49,25,040 2,95,414
Printing, stalionery & communication 12,89,579 7,87,304
Short Term Rent {Refer Note 32) 28,18,525 B81,24,370
Donation 3,000 -
Rates and léxes 2,30,879 625
Repairs :

To Building 14,21,338 1,840

To Machinery 1,09,96,886 4,45,131

To Others © 28,152 25,860
Stores Consumption 84,84,733 -
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 2,00,32,239 23,81,585
Legal & Professional charges 1,08,61,792 26,53,942
Housekeeping Charges 50,04,680 16,87,894
Security Charges 58,50,611 19,69,847
Copveyance & Travelling expense 3,43,83,531 50,01,822
Software expenses 1,64,767 -
Pepalty 14,245 -
Share Issue Expenses - 2,43,010
Water Charges 12,000 22,140
Auditer's remuneration. (Refer Note a below} 2,67,251 20,000
Bank charges 9,96,121 57,444
Miscellaneous expenses 2,24,46,793 13,74,895
Total 16,03,55,341 2,88,28,409

Amount in Rs.

a. Break up of Auditor's Remuneration

Pirticulars

Year Ended.
March 31, 2020

Yeat Ended
March 31,2019

Payment to Auditors as !

Auditors 1,75,000 30,000
For tax eudit 31,000 -
For ather certification work 50,000 -
For reimhursement of expenses. 11,251 -
Taotal - 2,67,251 30,000

Note 23A : Exceptional Items

Exceptional items represent allowances for doubtful receivables,




. Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 24 : Income Tax
The major compenent of income tax expense:

Amount in Rs,

Par 'culars

_Year Ended
March 31, 2020

_Ye_‘z_ir";E'nded R
March 31,2019

Statement of Profrt & Loss
Current Tax

Current income tax
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax Charge/{Credit)

(10,92,75,545)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of
profit. & loss

(10,92,75,545)

OCI Section

Amount in Rs.

Pa : _cula s':

" Year Ended
March 31, 2020

-, Year Ended
' _March 31, 2019

Statement to Other comprehenswe income ( OCr}

Deferred tax Charge/(Credit)

(9,60,072)

Deferred tax charged to OCI-

(9,60,072)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate:

A) 'Current tax

Amount in Rs.

Pf tlculars

- “Year Ended .

March 31, 2020

Year. Ended

. March 31, 2019 -

Accountmg Proflt/(Loss) before tax

Tax Rate

" Current Tax Expenses on Profit/(Loss) before. tax at the
enacted income tax rate in India

Adjustments

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

Expenditure allowable on payment basis/ over the
period '

Unused losses available for offsetting against future
taxable incoame

Impact of Ind AS 116 - Leases (8,11,819)
Non-recognition of deferred tax assets due to absence

of probable certainty of reversal in future

Others (12,400)

(36,61,26,448)
25.168%

(9,21,46,704)

30,20,560

(7,06,670)
(1,86,18,512)

(6,51,00,645)
25.168%

Current Tax at the effective income tax rate

(10,92,75,545)
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Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

MNote 25 : Contingent liabilities
Amount in Rs.

As at _A's at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

.Contingent liabilities not provided for
Guarantees given by bank on behalf of the Company 2,89,25,912 -

Note 26 : Capital commitment and other commitments

' . Amount in Rs,
Particulars . . Asat - Asat
R O y _ . March:31, 20200 March 31,.2019

_Capital commitments i

"Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be -
executed on capital account and not provided for

Other commitments _

Note 27 Foreign Currency Exposures not hedged

Exposure Not Hedged
= Amount in Rs, 1n ee

EURg - AmountinRs.

- UsD
-Receivables . .
As at March 31, 2070 7,77,813 5,88,53,183 - -
As at March 3%, 2019 5,04,840 3,49,12,210 - -
Payable to creditors
As at March 31, 2020 ' 95,956 72,60,499 4,31,756 ~  3,57,36,411
As at March 31, 2019 . 37,550 25,56,770 1,88,415 1,46,34,664




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
" Notes to the Financial Statements

- Note 28 : Segment Reporting

" Identification of Segments:
The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business segment separately for the

“purpose-of making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance.is
evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.
. Ope'r_atin_gsegment have been identified on the basis of nature of products and other quantitative criteria

. specified in the Ind AS 108. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

" reporting provided to the Chief Cperating Decision Maker ("CODM"™) of the company.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Branded Apparels (Garments and Accessories)
through Retail and Departmental Store facilities, which in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108
on Segment Reporting, constitutes a single reportable primary (business) segment.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.
: g Amount in Rs.
Year Ended ' .YearEnded
March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

‘Segment Revenue*

a) In India 55,54,06,815 1,05,93,718
- b) Rest-of the world - 27,60,42,602 5,83,16,113
~ Total Sales 83,14,49,417 6,89,09,831
' Carrying Cost of Segment Assets** -
.a) In‘India* : : 2,01,31,57,974 62,26,66,253
.. B) Rest of the. world . 5,88,53,183 3,49,12,210
| Total _ 2,07,20,11,157 65,75,78,463
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@
at In India 1,29,67,33,383 48,90,69,050
b) Rest of the world : . - -
Total 1,29,67,33,383 48,90,69,050

* Based on location of Customers
- %% Baged on location of Assels
@ Excluding Financial Assets and Deferred Tax Assets

“"Note: | : :
Considering the nature of business of company in which it operates, the company deals with various

customers including multiple geographics. There are two (2) customers together contributing Rs.
72,66,60,968/- (March 31, 2019 : 2 customers , Rs. 19,59,02,031/-)of the total revenue of the

company from domestic and export sales.
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Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30 : Related Party Transactions

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24}, the related
parties of the Company are as follows :

a Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship Relation

Holding Campany
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

‘Arvind Limited
Arvirnd Envisol Limited
Enkay Converged Technelogies LLP

Mr. Punit S. Lalbhai Director
Mr. Vinay Swaika- Director
Mr. Susheel Kumar Kaul Director

‘

' .No_te':. Related party relationship is-as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

b’ Transactions with related parties
Amount in Rs.

T i e -Huldilflg Fellow =
Pilrtl.Ci..llal"S:- . . Company- . Subsidiaries .
Purchase of Gopds and Materials
March 31, 2020 74,99,7%,928 74,50,555
March 3%, 2019 8,45,51,799 -
-|Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
March 31, 2020 2,48,31,563 5,80,64,004
March 31, 2019 5,71,073 41,31,276
-|$ales of Goods and Materials
March 31, 2020 41,33,04,064 -
March 31, 2019 - -
._ Bendefing of Services-Precessing Charges
March 31, 2020 ) 87,944,531 -
“IMaich 31, 2019 44,23,649 -
N fnterest Expense
~tMarch 31, 2020 4,52,31,475 -
- tMarch 33, 2019 83,36,789 -
Capital Advance Given
March 31, 2020 - -
March 31, 2019 - 1,80,00,000
. |Loan Taken/{Repayment of Loan)
¢ |March 31, 2020 8,45,37,800 -
March 31, 2619 28,68,49,600 -
Issue of Shares (Including Securities Premium}
Mareh 31, 2020 - -
March 31, 2019 4,00,00,000 -
|Share Application Money Received Pending Allotment
March 31, 2020 ‘ 45,00,00,000 -
March 31, 2019 - -




Arvind Smart Textiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

¢ Balances
Amount in Rs.

Partichl Holding | T Fellow
|Farticulars Company Subsidiaries
|Trade and Other Receivable
|March 31,2020 - . -
) March 31, 2019 9Q,98,813 © 1,80,00,000
Trade and Other Payable
March 31, 2020 39,78,78,235 2,97,08,162
‘{March 31, 2019 ’ 5,92,05,906 46,05,380
‘|Payable in respect of Loans
March 31, 2020 37,13,87,400 -
r|March 31, 2016 28,68,49,600 -
Share Application Money Pending Allotment
March:31, 2020 45,00,0C,000 -
March 31, 2019 - -

d Terms angd conditions of transactions with related parties
1} Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances cther than loan taken at the year-end
“are unsecured and interest free and settiement occurs in cash.

2) Lbans taken from the related party carries interest rate 8.75% (March 31, 2019 : 8.75%}

e¢. Commitments with related parties
The Company has not provided any commitment to the related party (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil)




| Arvind"'Smar,t"lTé.xtiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 31 : Earning per share

Amount in Rs.

- YearEnded . =~ YearEnded . -

March 31,2020  March 31,2019

Earning per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year {In Nos.)

Weighted average number of equity shares
For:basic EPS (In Nos.}
For-diluted EPS {(In Nos.}

Nominal value of equity shares - In Rs.

Basic earning. per share - In Rs.

Diluted earning per share - In Rs.

Weighted average number of equity shares
(In Nos.)
Weighted avérage number of equity shares for basic EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of

dilution

(25,68,50,903) (6,51,00,645)
" 1,10,000 1,10,000
1,10,000 16,301
1,10,000 16,301

10 10

(2,335.01) (3,993.57)
(2,335.01) (3,993.57)
1,10,000 16,301
1,10,000 16,301
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_Note 32.: ‘Leases

A. For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are
expiring within 12 menths from the date of transition by class of asset and ieases for which the underlying
asset Is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company has also used the practical expedient
previded by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases
urider Ind AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the
date of iritial application,. relied on its assessment of whether leasés are anerous, applying Ind AS 37
immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review,
excluded initial direct.costs from measuring the right of use asset at the date of initial application and
used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains opticns to extend or terminate
the lease. The Company has used & single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

.On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability mecasured at the present value of the rermaining
lease payments. The right-of-use asset.is recagnised at its carrying amount as if the standard had been
appiied since the commencement of the lease, but discounted using the lessee’s Incremental borrowing
_rate as at April 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 8% has been applied to
lease liabilities recognised in the batance sheet at the date of initial application.

on application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to
depreciation cost for the right-to-tse asset, and finance cost for ipterest accrued on lease fiability.

The difference between the future minimum lcase rental commitiments towards nen-canceltable operating
leases reported as ak March 31, 2019 compared to the lease liability as accounted as at April 1, 2019 is
primarily due'to inclusion of present value of the lease payments for the cancellable term of the leases,
reducticn due te discounting of the lease liabilitics as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 and exclusion of
the commitments for the leases ta which the Company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as per
the standard. The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as per para C8 (C) (i) of IND-AS
116, Leases to its leases effective from accounting period beginning from April 01, 2019 and recognised
Right of Usc assets and Lease Liability as on Aprit 61, 2019 and difference between Right of Use Assets
and Lease Liability, net of deferred tax Rs. 1,24,36,181/- (Deferred Tax Rs. 41,82,620/- ) has been
adjusted in retained earnings.

B. The Company has taken factory building and other facilities on lease period of 1 to 10 years with option of
renewal.
Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

C. Changes in the carrymg value of nght of use assets (Buuldmg) Amount in Rs,
.:Pa tn:ulars ) " Year Ended Year. E'h:dﬂ",'i'_.
Ll . March 31, 2020 March:31; 2019
-Balance at thL begmnmg of the period 38,04,31,829
Recognition ‘of ROU Asset on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 - -
Additions ‘ '

Deletions
Depreciation (4,40,58,844) -

Balance at the end of the period . 33.63,72,985 -
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Movement in fease liabilities

Amount in Rs.

rticulars.

Year Ended"

‘Mairch 31, 2020

YearEnded
‘March 31,2019

Recogniticn of ROU Asset en account of adoption of Ind AS 116
Additions

Déletions

Finance cost accrued during the period

39,70,50,630

3,31,52,524

Payment of lease liabilities (5,81,47,032) -
Balance at the end of the period 37,20,56,122 -
Current 2,73,30,947 -
Non-current 34,47,25,175 -
Contractual maturities of lease liahilities Amount in Rs.
N Year Ended. Year Ended-

‘Particulars’ ..

March 31,2020,

March 31, 2019

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years

2,73,30,947
15,73,27,437
17,73,97,738

Total

37,20,56,122

The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

‘ assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to [ease liabilities as and when they fall due.

“The Company incurred Rs. 28,18,525/- for the. year ended March 31, 2020 towards expenses relating to
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Nate 32 : Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabifities

Set'gut below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s éinancial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are

reasonahle apprommanons of feif values:
Amount in Rs.

Asg at . - Asat
March 31, 2020 March 21,2019

' Financial liabilities

Borrowings
-Carrying Amount 92,14,57,598 53,30,35,472
FairValue 92,14,57,5398 53,30,35,472

Spe accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

The management assessed that the fzir values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade payables
angd other current-financial Sabllities approximale their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value.of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
narties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. The foliowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabilities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currenlly avaitable for debts on similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities,

The discount, for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Groug has determined that market participants would take into account when pricing the
. mvestments. ’

Note 34 3 Fair value hlerarchy

The following table provides the falr value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assels and liablfities
) Amount in Rs,

Fair value measurement. using

: Quoted prices in” Significant . -Significant
Date of valuation Totai active markets observable unpbservable
: ' (Level 1). inputs =0 inputs
H M Sh i : (Level 2) flevel3}.
. Liabilities measured at Fair value
Borrowings | : March 31, 2020 93 14,57,598 - 92,14,57,598 -
) March 31, 2019 53,30,35,472 - 53,30,35472 -

Faii' value hierarchy

Level i: Level 1 hierarchy inciudes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equily inslrumants that have quoted
price.The fair value of all equity instruments which are fraded in tho stock-exchanges is valued vsing the closing price as at the reporting period

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that. are not traded in an active market {for exampie, traded bands, over-the counter derivatives) is
determinad using valualion tochnigues which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. I
Lm.jcl 3: Tf ong or more of the significant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the insteument is included in level 3.This is the case for
unlisted equity securities, conlingent consideratien and indemnification asset included in level 3

There are no transfer belween level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
The Company’s.pelicy is to recognise Lransfers into and transfers out of fair value hicrarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
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Note 35 : Financial instruments. risk management objectives and policies

The ‘Company’s principal financia! tiabilities, other than derivetives, comprise borrowings and trade & other payables. The main purpose of these financial ligbllities is to
finance the Company‘s operations and to support its operations, The Cornpany's principal financial assets include Investments, foans given, trade and other receivables
and cash & shori-term deposits that derve directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose It to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In arder o minimise any adverse effects on the financial pedfarmance of the Company,
derivative-financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign curvency option contracis are entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposures
and interést rote swaps to hedge certain variable interest rate exposures. Dorivatves are used. exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading / speculative
instruments.

The Company's risk management I5 carried out by a Treasury department under policies approved by the Board of directors. Company’s treasury identifies, avaluates
dnd ‘hedges financizl risks in tlose co-pperation with the Company's operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
palicies covering specific aceas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, vse of derivative financial instruments and nap-derivative financial
instriments, and investment of excess Liquidity.

(a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the Eair value of fulure cash flows of a fAinancial instrument will fluctuste because af changes in market prices. Market risk comoprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
barrowings, deposits, [nvestments, trade and othar receivables, trade and other payabkes and derivative financial instruments.

within the varicus methodologies to analyse and manage risk, Company hag implemented a system based on "sensitivity analysis” on symmetric basis. This toal enables
the risk managers to identify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification of the expesure in the event that.certain
specified parameters were t¢ be mot under a specific set of assumptions. The risk estimates, provided here assuma:

- a parallet shift of 50-basis points of the interost rate yield curves in all currencies,
- a'simultanecus, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in which the TNR appreciates / depreciates against afl correncies by 2%

- 10% increase / duecrease in equity prices of aff investments traded in an active market, which are classified as financial asset measured. at FYOCT,

The potential economicimpact, dije te these assumptions, is hased on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulting
from tho sensitivity analysis. Actuat results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materiaily from these estimates due to actual tevelopments in
the global financial markets.

The analyses exclude the impact of mavements in market variables on: the-carrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

) The fotlowing assumption has been made in caleulating the sensitivity analyses:
S - The sensitivity of the relovant statement of profit or loss item is the effact of the assomed changes in respective market risks. This is gased on the financal assets and
financial liabilities held at respective period/vear end including the effect of hedge accounting.

Interest rate risk .

_Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of finandial assets and labilitics to changes in market rates of interest. The Company seeks ta mitigate such risk by entering
Intg jnterest raté derivative financial instruments such as inferest rate swaps or Cross-currency interest rate swaps. Interest rakte swap agreements are used to adjust
tha proportion of total debt; that are subject to variable and fixed interest rates.

under an interest rate swap agreemenl, the Company either agrees 1o pay an amount equal to o specified fixed-rate of interest times a notianal principal amount, and

. to receive In réturn an ampunt equal ko & spacified variable-rate of interest timés the'same notional principal amount or, vice-versa, to receive a fixed-rate amount and
to pay-avariable-rate amount. The notional amounts of the contracts are not exchanged. No other cash payments are made ualess the agreement is terminated prior to
maturity, in which case the amount paid or received in settiement is ostablished by agreement at the tima of ternination, and usually represents the net prasent value,
at current rates of interest, of the remaining obligations to exchange payments under the terms of the contract.

A at-March 31, 2020, approximately 40.30% of the Company's Borrawings are at fixed rate of interest (March 31, 2019: 53.89%)

Interast rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of
hedga accounting, With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit bofore tax 1s affectad through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Amaount in Rs.

Effect on profit

] i before tax
March 31, 2020 ) ¢
Increase in 50 basis points (27.50,251)
Decrease in 50 basis points 27,50,35¢
March 31, 2019
. Increase in 5Q basis points (12,309,929}
Decrease in S0 basis points - 12,30,929

Exclusion from this analysis arc as follaws:
- Fixed rate financizl instruments measured at cost © Since @ change in interest rate would not change the carrying amount of this categary of instruments, thece is no
net income impact and they are excluded from this analysis

«The-€ffect of interest rate changes.on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.
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Foruign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure wilt fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company

transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USL. The Company has obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currancy trade payables
- and receivables etc. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk, The Company may use forward contracts, fortign exchange options or currency swaps towards

hedging risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in foreign currency oxchange rate, These foréign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varying

maturities varyirg depending upon the primary host contract requirements and risk management strategy of the Company.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging apprapriate percentage of its foreign currency gxposure, as approved by Board as per established risk
management policy. Datalls of the hedge & unheuged position of the Company given in Note 27.

Forcign currency sensitivity

The foliowing tables demeonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USH snd EUR rates to the functional currency of respettive entity, with all other
variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes For ali other currencies is not material. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities, The impact on the Company’s pre-tax equity is due to ¢hanges in the fair value of foreign currency
monetary{ items designated. as cash flow hedge.

Amount in Rs.

Change inUSD rate . ETfect onprofit “-Effection‘profit-

Change in EUR rate. )

. - before tax - before.tax.

March 31, 2020 +2% 7,50,180 +2% 7,14,728
-2% {7,50,180) 2% (7,14,728)

March 31, 2019 +2% 7,50,180 +2% 2,592,693

-2% {7.50,180}) -2% {2,92,697)

Although the financial iastruments have nat been designated in a bedge relationship, thoy act as-an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions. when
they occur. K

(b} Credit risk
Credit risk is the rsk that & counterparty will nat meet its obligations under a financal instrument or custamer contrack, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed ta credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivablus) and from its financing activities, including doposits with banks, foreign exchange
transactions.and other financial instruments. :

Trade receivables

Customer tredit risk js mansged by each business unit subjoct to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Trade recelvables are non-interest tearing and are generally gn 30 days to 60 days credit term. Credit limits are established for alt customers based on
intarnal rating criteria. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly manitored and any shipments [0 mpjor CUStOmErs are generally covarad by letters of credit. The
Company has ng concentration of credit risk as the custoper hase is widely distrihuted both economically and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for majer clients. In addition, a large: number of minor receivables are Companyed
‘intg homogenaus Companys and assessed for impairment collectively. The raleulation is based on actuad incurred historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk
atthe seposting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note & (2}, The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade.receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely

T
) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit_risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s tredsury-departmest in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties who meeis the minimum threshold requirements under the counterparty risk assessment pracess. The
Comgpany moniters the ratings, credit spreads and finandat strength of its counterparties. Based on its or-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts
its exposure to varlous counterparties. The Company's maximum exposlire (o credit risk for the components of the Balance sheet s is the carrying amount as disclosed
in Note 33.
{c) Liquidity risk

R Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may nat be able 1o meet its present and futdre cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.. The
Campany's objective is to, at ali times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity
position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of fimancing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from both domestic and
international banks at an optimised cost. It aiso enjoys strong access to domestic capitat markets across equity.

“The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual-undiscounted payments:

Amount in Rs.

ngf ;g__;la['s e R L . i_'gss than 1 year lyear to 2years 3 years to 5.years Aftér 5 years ) Total

As at March 31, 2020

Interest bearing borrowings™ 48,43,37,855 31,56,96,73% 20,17,32,488, 5,15,51,574 1,086,33,18,60606
- 2,73,30,947 7,34,19,443 9,39,07,994 17,73,97,738 37,20,56,122
Trade payables 52,70,44,641 - - - 52,79,44,641

Otherfinancial liabijities# 7,11,66,177 - - - 7,11,66,177
1,12,07,79,630 38,91,16,182 25,56,40,482 22,89,49,312 2,03,44,85,606

As at March 31, 2019

Interest bearing borrowings™® 35,82,68,260 14,45,26,566 4,59,51,852 1,33,32,225 58,70,78,903

tease Liabilities - - - - -

Trade payables 11,12,37,459 - - - 11,12,37,499

Other financial Tiabilities # 2,75,76,068 - - 2,75,76,098

49,70,81,857 14,95,26,566 6,59,51,852 1,33,32,225 72,58,92,500

* Includes contractual interest payment based on interast rate prevailing at the end-of the reporting pariod over the tenor of the borrowings.
-#_Other financial liabilities includes interest accrued but not due Rs, 4,18,17,002/- (March 31, 2019 Rs. Nil}




Arvind Smart Textifes Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 36 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and ali other equity reserves attributable to the eguity holders of the
Company, The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an officient capital siructure and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes. adjustments to it o tight-of changes in cconomic conditions o its bhsmess requirements. To maintain or adjust
the, capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capitdi to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capitat
uslng a goaring ratio, which is net.debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company inciudes within net debi, interest bearing 1oans and borrowings less cash and

short-term deposits {including other Bank balance).
-Amount in Rs.

Gariad eat At
e e R . S March 31, 2019 March 31; 2019
Interest-bearing {oans and borrowings (Note 12a) 42,14,57,598 53,30,35,472
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent (including other bank batance and Book (3,31,82,156} {11,87,271}
Overdraft)
Net dobt 88,82,75,442 52,88,48,201
N

" Equity shara capital {Nofe 10) 11,00,000 11,400,000
Other equity (Mote 1.1} 15,14,10, 365 (2,64,47,968)
“Total capital 15,25,10,365 {2,53,47,968)
Capital and net dobt . 1,04,07,85,807 50,35,00,233“
Gearing ratia 85.35% 145,03%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ansure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interestsbearing loans and borrowings that defing capital structure requirgments, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the hank to immediately call
loans and barrawings. There have been no breaches o the fnancial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes werg made in the nbjectlves, policies or processes for managing capitat during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

ioan covenants
Under the terms of major borrowing facilities, the Cempany has complied with the required financial covenants through out the reporting periods.
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Note 38 : Note on COVID -19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the glabe. It has caused severe effects on the
economy, werld over including India due to fockdowns, disruptions in fransportation, supply chain, travel plans,
quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.

The business.of the Company is not severely affected by this disruption. The effects such as lower than normal
business, other disruptions are not expected to have continuing effect based on current assessment.,

The Company has made detailed assessment of the liquidity position for the next one year and of the
recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising Trade Receivables, Inventory and other financiaf assets
as at balance sheet date and is of the opinion that there is no requirement for any adiustment. In assessing the

recoverability of its assets including receivahles and inventories, the firm has considerad internal and external
- Anformation-up to the date of approval of these financial statements including economic forecasts. The Company
has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic
conditions, the firm expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets, The impact of the global health
pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. However,
. the impact.assessment of COVID-19is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and
duration. The Company wili continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

. "Note 39 : New Accounting Pronouncements fo be adopted on or after March 31, 2020

There are no standards or interpretations which are notified but not yet effective and that would be expected tc
have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods.

Note 40 : Regfduped, Recast, Reclassified

Material regrodpings: Apprepriate adjustments have been made in the statements of assets and liabilities, statement of
profit and loss and cesh flows, wherever required, by a reclassification of the corresponding items of income, expenses,
assels, liabilities-and cash flows in order to bring them in line with the groupings as per the audited financials of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, prepared in accordance with Schedule 11T of Companies Act 2013,




